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Above: Buildings in Zhuhai City, Macau.

. . . is a fund manager and adviser which
raises, invests and manages funds in real
estate. It has been specifically created to
leverage the Group’s property experience
and investment management expertise. It is
already managing one private fund and one
public fund which each invest in German
residential real estate, plus a public fund
investing in development properties in
Macau. The company also has a wholly-
owned subsidiary, Speymill Property Group
(Far East) Limited in Hong Kong, as a
base for servicing and developing the
Asian market.

Above: Holiday Inn, Chessington World of Adventures.

. . . is a specialist contractor working
predominantly in the hotel, leisure and retail
industries. Established in 1995, the
company provides construction and fast
track refurbishment services to hotel, public
house, restaurant and leisure groups. The
company specialises in design and build
projects, transforming, refurbishing and
converting commercial, leisure and licensed
premises. Speymill Contracts Limited has
considerable expertise and a dedicated
team that are focused on its aim of
delivering projects on time, on budget and
with no snags.

Above: Rathenaustr. Erfurt (Krämpfervarstadt),

SDIC Portfolio.

. . . is a joint venture with a German
company for the management of portfolios
of properties in Germany. GOAL assists
Speymill Property Group in the sourcing,
selection, funding and acquisition of the
properties acquired for the German funds.
It then manages the properties on behalf
of the funds ensuring rental income is
collected and undertaking technical
property management services and
property administration. GOAL’s wholly-
owned subsidiary, GOAL Construction
GmbH carries out major refurbishments of
fund properties.

Speymill Property Group Limited, Isle of Man Speymill Contracts Limited, Cambridgeshire GOAL Service GmbH, Berlin

Group Subsidiaries
This core objective is pursued through our various divisions, each one being complementary to each other.

Speymill’s objective is to develop a multinational
property services group, which encompasses real
estate investment management, construction and
property management operations and which will
bring significant returns for all stakeholders.

www.speymill.com
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Speymill’s activities cover real estate investment management, 
property construction and property management services.

• Turnover up 136% to £52.7m (2006: £22.3m)

• Profit from operations, before share based payments, of £3.09m (2006: £0.39m)

• Earnings per share, before share based payments, of 5.01p (2006: 1.06p)

• Outstanding debt extinguished in July 2007

• Net assets £5.07m (2006: £2.21m)

• Operational cash inflow £1.93m (2006: outflow £0.01m) and year-end cash resources of £1.50m

(2006: £0.65m)

• Maiden dividend of 0.5p per share

Highlights

Earnings Per Share
(before share-based payments)

Net AssetsProfit from operations
(before share-based payments)
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Right: Holiday Inn,
Chessington World of Adventures.
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Introduction
I am very pleased to be able to make my first full year report to you as
your Chairman, following the re-incorporation of the company in the
Isle of Man in September 2007.

We have made considerable further progress in developing our
businesses during the year. In my 2007 interim statement I was able
to report that our half year results showed a substantial increase in
turnover and profitability for both our investment management and
contracting activities, and we have maintained that progress during
the second half of the year. From a financing perspective, our debt
free balance sheet has significantly mitigated our exposure to the
credit crunch impact, and our business models provide us with the
strength and flexibility to pursue new opportunities arising in various
geographies in the current economic climate. 

During 2007 we raised additional equity for both Speymill Deutsche
Immobilien Company plc (SDIC) and Speymill Macau Property
Company plc (Macau). GOAL Service GmbH, our property services
joint venture in Germany also made good progress on both its
property management activity and in initiating a significant

refurbishment programme. Furthermore, our UK contracting business
more than doubled its turnover, with a substantial improvement in
profitability, and also further increased the value of its pipeline of order
prospects. 

Results
2007 is the first year that the Group’s results are prepared and
reported under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
This means changes in the accounts format and requires some
adjustments to comparative figures, as disclosed in the accounts.

Group turnover for the year was £52.70m (2006: £22.31m), giving a
significant increase of 136%. The major contributor to the value
increase was our contracting business where turnover rose to
£41.37m (2006: £18.14m), an improvement of 128%. Investment
management turnover benefitted from full commitment to investment
of the SDIC ordinary shares funds by the end of the second quarter,
and also from fees generated by the additional equity raised in the
first half of the year for both SDIC C shares and for our Macau fund.
Investment management turnover for the year rose to £11.33m
(2006: £4.17m), an increase of 171%, which reflects the excellent
progress made in our fund business. 

“We now have proven effective and
robust business models which provide an
excellent basis for the Group to make
further strong progress and to meet the
challenges which the changing economic
climate is presenting. We are therefore
expecting further significant growth in
turnover and profitability during this
current year.”

Above: August-Bebel-Strasse,
Markleeberg, SDIC Portfolio.

Left: Room interior, Holiday Inn
Chessington.

Right: Days Inn, Haverhill.

Opposite right: Alexander Puschkin 
Strasse, Mauselwitz.

14935SPEYMILL:Layout 1  18/4/08  17:32  Page 2



03

14935 18/04/2008 Proof 9

Encouragingly, overall gross margin percentage for the Group
remained fairly constant, with 24.2% in 2007 against 24.5% in 2006. 

The substantial increase in Group turnover and the input required into
ongoing business development have inevitably required a
considerable further investment in staff and establishment costs.
Despite this, in 2007 total general administrative expenses of £9.27m
(2006: £5.08m) as a percentage of turnover represent a reduction to
17.6% (2006: 22.7%). This reflects a combination of ongoing cost
control and the initial impact of the previously reported staff increases
incurred in the second half of 2006 in advance of increasing activity
levels in 2007. 

Share based payment costs, charged in accordance with IFRS 2, were
£0.79m (2006: £0.91m), including £0.44m for the full cost of certain
share issues and share options which arose and vested within the
year. In addition, a one-off charge of £0.39m was incurred in respect
of the re-incorporation of the holding company to the Isle of Man and
was fully expensed. This charge will not be repeated this year.

Profit from operations was £2.30m (2006: loss £0.52m), and profit
before tax was £2.26m (2006: loss £0.53m). On a segmental basis,
profit before tax comprised fund management £2.07m, contracting
£0.82m and property management £0.83m less group costs of
£1.07m and reincorporation costs of £0.39m. A segmental analysis is
shown in note 2 to the accounts.

The taxation charge of £0.17m (2006: tax credit £0.22m) represents
only 7.4% of pre-tax profits because of the benefit of brought forward
losses.

Undiluted earnings per share were 3.63p (2006: loss per share
0.55p). Before share based payment costs, earnings per share were
5.01p (2006: 1.06p).

Performance Related Awards
With effect from the 2007 financial year, the Board has introduced a
new incentive scheme for executives and staff in line with normal
standards and practices for our types of businesses. I and the Board
regard this as being at the appropriate level to attract, incentivise,
motivate and retain the required calibre of staff and we believe such a
scheme will be beneficial to the Group’s ongoing development.

The non-executive directors, including myself do not participate in any
way in this scheme.

Dividend
The Board has previously indicated that the company would
commence payment of dividends as from the 2007 annual results
and that commitment is being met with a proposed final dividend of
0.5p per share for 2007. Furthermore, subject to trading
performance, it is anticipated that increasing levels of dividends will
be paid in future, commencing with a more substantial 2008 interim
payment in the last quarter of this year.

Restructuring 
The reincorporation of the holding company to the Isle of Man
became effective on 19 September 2007. The Scheme of
Arrangement under which this was effected involved the creation of a
new Isle of Man registered holding company and resulted in some
changes to the composition of the Board. I became Non Executive
Chairman, with Bob MacDonald and Andrew Latham taking up the
roles of Group Chief Executive and Group Managing Director

respectively, and Keith Lees remaining as Finance Director. The only
other change was that Howard Flight did not join the new company’s
Board, but he has continued as Chairman of Speymill Property Group
Limited and continues to provide strategic advice to the Board where
appropriate.

In December 2007 we changed the name of Speymill Property
Managers Limited to Speymill Property Group Limited to more clearly
reflect the broad role that the business has.

Future Prospects 
The Group has continued to make considerable progress during the
year which continues in 2008.

The fund management team are exploring and pursuing appropriate
opportunities which are still likely to come to fruition in the current
market. These will primarily be in geographical areas where we are
already active and also in new areas to expand our breadth of
operations and move closer to a truly multinational business. Our
German property management joint venture is exploring possibilities
to broaden its client base, using the support of sub-contracted
property management partners.

Our contracting business has been a progressive success story over
the last three years and the current signs are that there are further
improvements in activity levels and profitability to be achieved
going forward.

We now have proven effective and robust business models which
provide an excellent basis for the Group to make further strong
progress and to meet the challenges which the changing economic
climate is presenting. We are therefore expecting further significant
growth in turnover and profitability during this current year.

Our ongoing intense pursuit of real and significant growth across our
business activities continues to place our employees under
considerable pressure to achieve the required performance. On behalf
of the Board I would like to thank all members of our team for their
hard work and determination in striving to achieve our goals. We
remain committed to being a leading specialist global property
management group within 5 years.

Jim Mellon
Chairman
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market climate presents a more challenging environment for raising
new funds, but our fund management team is continually pursuing
new opportunities in various geographical areas and we are confident
that we can drive further increases in assets under management.

At GOAL Service, our Berlin based property management joint
venture, activity for the year included a combination of further growth
in the number of properties under management arising from
continuing German fund investment, plus commencement of major
refurbishment programmes for both Epicure and SDIC. Several
additional senior managerial appointments were made during the
year, and a comprehensive operational review was undertaken which
resulted in various organisational changes to further improve
efficiency and service levels. Further investment has also been made
in IT systems to enhance management and control of the high
transaction volumes now being handled. The continuing investment
by the German property funds resulted in a total of 27,710 units
under management at the end of the year.

Speymill Contracts set a target of strong growth for 2007 and I am very
pleased to report that this was fully achieved, with turnover growth of
128% achieved in conjunction with maintenance of normal margins. As
previously reported the strategy for the company has been developed
and focussed around new build turnkey projects and major extension
programmes, both for established customers and for new private
developers and leisure operators. This growth has required a further
programme of key staff recruitment during the year and the business
now has the quantity and quality of resources to effectively handle
further increases in activity. In December 2007 the company moved
into larger, purpose built premises, still within the Huntingdon area.

The continuing increase in the value of the company’s pipeline of
order prospects, which  currently exceeds £140m, provides a strong
platform for achieving the further growth targeted for 2008 onwards.
Major hotel orders recently won include 154 bed Premier Inn in
Cambridge, 120 bed Holiday Inn in Stevenage, 112 bed Ramada
Encore in Derby and 80 bed Days Inn in Folkestone.

Initial activity has commenced on the joint venture with The Goodman
Group LLC of the USA (‘Goodman’), formed during mid 2007 to
investigate the potential development of retirement villages in the UK.
Goodman has been operating these types of facilities in the USA for
more than 40 years, has over 60 communities in 10 states, and is a
recognised market leader. Over the last few months a number of
potential sites have been identified in the UK with a view to making an
initial acquisition later in 2008. Considerable work has been carried
out on modelling the financial structure in preparation for fundraising
presentations by Speymill Property Group to both public and private
investors. This should commence later this year when market
conditions are right.

The global economic climate in which we operate is becoming more
demanding in terms of identifying products and opportunities to
enable future business expansion. Each of our businesses has been
further strengthened during the year in terms of both resources and
structure and I firmly believe that we have a sound basis to continue
to progress the Group’s development.

Bob MacDonald
Chief Executive Officer

“Each of our businesses has been further
strengthened during the year in terms of
both resources and structure and I firmly
believe that we have a sound basis to
continue to progress the Group’s
development.”

Having moved into the position of Group Chief Executive following the
Isle of Man reincorporation in September 2007, I now present my
report on a year which has seen further development of our businesses
despite an increasingly challenging economic environment.

Our 2007 results show significant turnover growth of 136% and a
move from a 2006 operating loss of £0.52m to a 2007 operating profit
of £2.30m, combined with net operational cash inflow of £1.93m. Our
investment management business entered the year with the Epicure
fund fully invested and the SDIC ordinary shares and Macau fund
investment well on the way towards their fully invested targets. The
SDIC ordinary shares investment reached an 85% notarisation
milestone at the end of the first quarter, achieving a leveraged value at
that time of €902m. On the back of this performance, and with
markets still showing an appetite for further investment in property
funds, the opportunity was taken during the second quarter to raise a
further €250m of equity for SDIC through the C share issue, plus a
second tranche of US$70m for the Macau fund. The C share equity
was also supported by the negotiation of a financing facility of €500m
at a rate below 5%, which was put in place prior to the deterioration of
loan markets later in the year.

Through a combination of value uplifts, asset management activity,
further acquisitions and refurbishment programmes during 2007, by
the end of the year the value of the SDIC ordinary share portfolio had
increased to €980m and Epicure to €380m, while the SDIC C shares
notarised property value was at €373m.

The Macau second tranche was conditionally committed to a
development property investment within the ‘Bel Lago’ development,
but protracted issues surrounding building permit applications
resulted in subsequent withdrawal from that investment. Despite this,
the significant increase in value of the properties acquired with the
first tranche of equity resulted in a Macau fund net asset value at the
end of 2007 of US$183m.

In July 2007 Thomas Sipos was appointed head of our Asian
operations, based in Hong Kong. As well as working with our property
advisers to seek potential investments for the Macau fund, Thomas
has been developing our local network to identify and pursue new
investment opportunities. He also took the lead in negotiating the
disposal of the Lot U investment which was announced early in 2008,
achieving a 125% return on equity and crystallising the associated
performance and disposal fees for Speymill Group of c.£1.6m.

The overall progress in investment management activities during the
year resulted in total assets under management as at the end of 2007
of over US$2.7 billion. This will increase in the first half of 2008
through further investment of the SDIC C share funds. The current
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Financial Review

“The Group’s result for the year
demonstrates the successful consolidation
of the initial benefits seen in 2006 from
the restructuring programme. Strong
overall improvements in turnover and
profitability have been achieved, enabling
the Board to meet its commitment to
propose a maiden dividend. Above: Conversion of offices to Holiday

Inn, Stevenage. Completion mid-2008.

Introduction
The Group’s result for the year demonstrates the successful
consolidation of the initial benefits seen in 2006 from the restructuring
programme. This has provided financial stability and strengthened the
Group’s overall operational ability to pursue growth opportunities in
each of our businesses during the year.

Strong overall improvements in turnover and profitability have been
achieved, enabling the Board to meet its commitment to propose a
maiden dividend.

Results
2007 is the first year that the Group’s results are reported under
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The application of
IFRS has not resulted in any material changes in the results achieved,
but disclosure requirements are more detailed and there have been
some changes to comparative figures for consistency.

Total turnover for the year was £52.70m, an increase of 136% on the
£22.31m reported in 2006. Contracting made the largest value
contribution to the increase, moving to £41.37m (2006: £18.14m).
Our investment management business showed revenue increases for
fund management and property management of 134% and 245%
respectively. Fund management benefitted from increasing invested
values and additional fund launches, plus commission on the SDIC C
share launch. Property management results included income of
£1.9m (2006: Nil) from the commencement of the SDIC and Epicure
refurbishment programmes.

Administrative expenses before share-based payments and
reincorporation costs were £9.28m (2006: £5.08m). The increase of
£4.2m represents the cost of putting in place the necessary
administrative structures and processes, and recruitment of additional
staff to support the substantial growth in business which occurred
during the year, which the Group can leverage further going forward.
2007 also included a first time cost for the new performance related
staff incentive scheme.

Share-based payments for the year of £0.79m (2006: £0.91m)
include £0.44m for the full cost relating to certain share issues and
share options which arose and vested within the year. 
Re-incorporation costs of £0.39m (2006: Nil) represent the full one-
off cost of re-incorporating the holding company in the Isle of Man,
under the scheme of arrangement approved by shareholders in
August 2007. The re-incorporation became effective as from 
19 September 2007. Profit from operations before share-based
payments and re-incorporation costs was £3.49m (2006: £0.39m).
Profit before tax was £2.26m, against a loss of £0.53m in 2006.

The net tax charge of £0.17m (2006: credit £0.22m) represents 
only 7.4% of profit before tax due mainly to the utilisation of brought
forward losses.

Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share was 3.63p, (2006: loss 0.55p). Before
share-based payments this increased to 5.01p (2006: 1.06p).

Net Assets and Cash Flow
The Group balance sheet was significantly strengthened during the
year with net assets increasing from £2.21m to £5.07m as a result of
increased profitability. Net working capital rose from £0.29m in 2006
to £1.56m in 2007. This increase reflects the higher values involved
in our contracting activity, plus the levels of quarterly fund
management fee accruals. The remaining installment on outstanding
redeemable loans of £0.04m was paid in July 2007, leaving the
balance sheet debt free.

The year end consolidated balance sheet still showed a deficit of
£7.21m on revenue reserves, with share premium account and
capital redemption account balances of £7.85m and £2.29m
respectively. The revenue deficit relates to the historic losses incurred
by the Group pre reorganisation. In February 2008 the high court
approved a capital reduction application made by Speymill 2007
Limited, the former UK holding company, to cancel its reserves deficit
against the share premium and capital redemption accounts.
Therefore, from that date the Group balance sheet shows positive
revenue reserves, with the share premium and capital redemption
accounts cancelled, giving a much cleaner ongoing capital and
reserves structure.

Cash inflow from operating activities was £1.93m (2006: outflow
£0.01m). The inflow was generated from profit for the year, less a net
increase of £1.25m in working capital. After investing £0.64m in SDIC
C shares as part of our structuring fee, plus capital investment of
£0.40m mainly in GOAL IT systems and fit-out of Speymill Contracts’
new offices, net cash inflow for the year was £0.86m. This gave year
end cash balances of £1.50m (2006: £0.64m).

Keith Lees
Finance Director
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Jim Mellon Aged 51, Non-executive Chairman
Jim gained a masters degree in politics, philosophy and
economics at Oxford and then worked in fund
management in Asia and the USA before establishing his
own investment business, Burnbrae, in 1991. He is the
chairman and co-founder of Regent Pacific Group
Limited and a director of Charlemagne Capital Limited
and various other investment companies. He is the
company’s main shareholder and his other investments
include a substantial property portfolio in Germany and
the Sleepwell Hotels chain. Jim spends most of his time
on start-up ideas and investing.

Bob MacDonald Aged 44, Chief Executive Officer
Bob had over 18 years experience in investment
banking, first with Salomon Brothers and latterly at
Morgan Stanley where he was appointed as a Managing
Director in 2000. He has worked in London, New York,
Tokyo and Hong Kong. Bob joined Speymill in 2005 as
executive chairman and oversaw the company’s
turnaround to profitability in 2007. He became Chief
Executive Officer following the Isle of Man 
re-incorporation in 2007 with responsibilities for running
the Group and property fund management business.

Andrew Latham Aged 45, Managing Director
Andrew held a number of senior appointments in the
hospitality industry prior to joining the company. He
played a significant part in the stabilisation and
repositioning of Speymill prior to joining the Board
formally as CEO in June 2005, and he became Group
Managing Director following the Isle of Man
reincorporation in September 2007 with responsibility for
running Speymill Contracts Limited. He has been
involved in property management and development
throughout his career.

Keith Lees Aged 56, Finance Director
Keith is a Chartered Accountant with over 30 years
experience in both public and private companies,
including considerable involvement in contracting
businesses. Having started his industrial career with GKN,
he then spent four years as Group Financial Controller of
Walker Greenbank Plc before becoming Finance Director
and later Managing Director of a private textiles
manufacturer between 1990 and 2000. He then spent
over two years as Finance Director and Company
Secretary of a new AIM flotation involved in process
heating technology, before joining Speymill at the start 
of 2005.
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Board Committees:

Both the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee are composed of all
the non-executive directors.

The Audit Committee is chaired by Ilyas Khan
and the Remuneration Committee is chaired
by Denham Eke.

Denham Eke Aged 56, Non-Executive
Denham began his career in stockbroking before moving
into corporate planning for a major UK insurance broker.
He is a director of many years standing of both public
and private companies involved in the retail,
manufacturing and financial services sectors. He is
currently Chairman of Webis Holdings plc and Managing
Director of Burnbrae Group Ltd.

Sir James Mellon Aged 79, Non-Executive
Sir James was a career diplomat. He was HM
Ambassador to Denmark, Director-General for trade and
investment, USA and Consul General, New York. He has
since gained valuable experience within the Company’s
sector of operation, as former Executive Chairman of
Thamesmead Urban Development Corporation and as
former Chairman of the housing agency, Scottish Homes.

Ilyas Khan Aged 45, Non-Executive
Ilyas is currently Group Managing Director of Crosby
Capital Partners and Chairman and Founder of their
majority shareholder, Techpacific Capital. He was
formerly a Managing Director of Nomura and has had a
successful career in investment banking, including
employment by Citicorp, UBS and Schroders. He is
based mainly in Hong Kong.

Nominated Adviser
Nabarro Wells & Co Ltd
Old Change House,
128 Queen Victoria Street,
London EC4V 4BJ

Broker
Lewis Charles Securities Ltd
LCS House, 44 Worship Street,
London EC2A 2EA

Independent Auditors
KPMG Audit LLC
Heritage Court, Athol Street,
Douglas
Isle of Man IM99 1HN

Secretary
Neil Holmes

Registered office
1st Floor,
Regent House,
16–18 Ridgeway Street,
Douglas,
Isle of Man IM1 1EN

Company Number
120231C
(Registered in the Isle of Man)

Solicitors
London
Stephenson Harwood
One, St Paul’s Churchyard,
London EC4M 8SH

Isle of Man
Dickinson Cruickshank
33 Athol Street, Douglas,
Isle of Man IM1 1LB

Bankers
Lloyds TSB
Norfolk House, 7 Norfolk Street,
Manchester M2 1DW

Registrars
Capita Registrars (Isle of Man)
Limited
3rd Floor, Exchange House,
54–62 Athol Street, Douglas,
Isle of Man IM1 1JD

Financial PR 
Parkgreen Communications Ltd
Pegasus House, 
37–43 Sackville Street,
London W15 3EH
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The Board is committed to good corporate governance and has regard
to the provisions of the Combined Code. The directors aim to exercise
effective control over the Group and its activities while recognising
their responsibility to shareholders and other interested parties. The
procedures implemented for applying these principles within the
Group are set out below.

Board composition
The composition of the Board provides an appropriate blend of
experience and qualifications, and the presence of four non-executive
directors provides a strong base for ensuring appropriate corporate
governance of the company. The Board meets formally 4 times a year,
with its decisions implemented by the executive directors.

The reappointment of non-executive directors is not intended to be
automatic. Prior to each non-executive director offering himself to the
members for re-election, his reappointment will have to be confirmed
by the Chairman in consultation with the remainder of the Board.

The Board is supplied with timely and relevant information regarding
the business, by regular and ad hoc reports, and this is supplemented
by site visits and by meetings with members of the management
team. Where appropriate, the company provides the resources to
enable directors to update and upgrade their knowledge. Through the
Finance Director and the Company Secretary, the Board is informed of
all corporate governance issues.

The Remuneration Committee evaluates individual executive directors’
performance. Individual non-executive directors’ performance is
reviewed by the Chairman and Chief Executive. The performance of
the Board as a whole is continuously assessed in the context of the
company’s achievement of its strategic objectives and total
shareholder return targets.

Board committees
In support of its commitment to good corporate governance, the
Board has appointed the following committees, each of which has
formal terms of reference. The composition of the committees is set
out on page 7.

a) Remuneration Committee 
The functions of the Remuneration Committee are set out on
page 10.

b) Audit Committee
The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year and in addition
either the external auditors may request a meeting if considered
necessary, or any member of the committee may convene a
meeting. The Finance Director attends part of these meetings
and the Chief Executive and Managing Director attend when
requested, but the Committee also meets with only appointed
members being present. The Committee has direct access to the
external auditors.

The Audit Committee’s functions include:
● Ensuring that appropriate accounting systems and financial

controls are in operation and that the company’s financial
statements comply with statutory and other requirements.

● Receiving reports from, and consulting with, the external
auditors.

● Reviewing the interim and annual results and considering any
matters raised by the external auditors.

● Monitoring the scope, cost-effectiveness and objectivity of the
audit.

● Monitoring the nature, scope and cost-effectiveness of non-audit
services provided by the external auditors and ensuring that,
where such services are provided, the objectivity and
independence of the external auditors is safeguarded.

● Making an annual assessment of the external auditors and
recommending, or not, their reappointment.

● Considering the need for an internal audit function.
● Ensuring the independence and objectivity of the external

auditors.
● Reviewing and monitoring of “whistleblowing” arrangements

within the company.

Risk management
The Board recognises that it has overall responsibility for the
identification and mitigation of risks and the development and
maintenance of an appropriate system of internal control. Accordingly,
as part of the annual strategic review process, a topdown risk
assessment will be undertaken.

The Board believes that, although some issues are outside its control,
it requires clear strategies for identifying, dealing with and mitigating
the impact of each of the identified risks.
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Internal control
The directors keep under review the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. The Group’s key internal controls are centred on:
● Comprehensive monthly reporting from all activities
● Detailed annual budgets, plus revised trading and cash flow

forecasts for the year prepared on a regular basis
● A management structure with clearly defined responsibilities and

authority limits
● An ongoing process of risk assessment as noted above
● Appraisal and authorisation procedures for capital expenditure

There is established a formal schedule of matters, including major
investment and development decisions and strategic matters, that are
reserved for Board approval. Formal policies and procedures are in
place covering operations, all elements of employment, health and
safety and IT.

Internal control, by its nature, provides only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
directors do, however, strive to ensure that internal control and risk
management are further embedded into the operations of the
business by dealing with areas for improvement as they are identified.

The Audit Committee believes that given the company’s current size,
where close control over operations will be exercised by the executive
directors, the benefits likely to be gained from an internal audit
function would be outweighed by the costs of establishing such a
function. The Board will keep this requirement under review in
relation to the ongoing size and complexity of the business.

Shareholder relations
The company places considerable importance on communication with
its shareholders. The executive directors already have a programme of
meetings with the main shareholder. Meetings with institutional
shareholders are arranged by request and at these meetings the
company’s strategy and most recently reported performance are
explained. The company’s Annual General Meeting is also used as an
opportunity to communicate with private investors. In addition, a
period for questions will be made available for shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting.

Business standards
The company does not condone any form of corrupt behaviour in
business dealings and has disciplinary procedures in place to deal
with any illegal or inappropriate activities by employees.
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Composition
The composition of the Remuneration Committee is set out on page 7.

Scope of operation
The committee meets at least once a year for the following main
purposes:
● To review and where necessary amend the form of service

contract or terms of appointment in operation for executives of
the Group.

● To consider the remuneration and other benefits paid or to be
paid to the executive directors of the company and other senior
executives of the Group, in accordance with the relevant review
provisions in existing service contracts or terms of appointment of
the executives.

● To consider any bonuses or other performance-related elements
of remuneration paid or to be paid to the executive directors of
the company and other senior executives of the Group and to
consider the eligibility of the executives for annual bonuses or
other incentive scheme benefits.

● To consider the recommendations from the executive directors
concerning the remuneration and other benefits to be paid to the
non-executive directors of the company.

● To determine, in its absolute discretion, any increase in the
remuneration and other benefits paid to the executive directors of
the company and other senior executives of the Group, subject to
any provisions in the Articles and any relevant service contract or
terms of appointment.

● To consider any other matters relating to the remuneration of or
terms of employment applicable to the executive directors of the
company and any other senior executives of the Group as may
from time to time be referred to the committee by the Board.

Remuneration policy
Executive directors and senior executives
The committee aims to offer competitive remuneration packages
which are designed to attract, retain and motivate executives of the
desired calibre and which are in line with the Group’s business
objectives. The main elements of remuneration are:
● Salary and Benefits — benefits comprise car/car allowance,

private medical insurance, pension contributions and life
assurance.

● Annual Bonus — bonuses are based on achievement of both
individual objectives and on targets linked to the Group’s key
performance indicators. Bonus awards comprise a combination
of cash and deferred shares (see below).

● Executive Share Option Scheme.

Executive Incentive Scheme
With effect from the 2007 financial year the Board has introduced a
performance related scheme under which annual awards are made
by the Remuneration Committee. The awards comprise a combination
of cash and deferred Speymill shares. An employee benefit trust has
been created to acquire and hold shares for employees, with the
shares being bought in the market. The deferred share awards
normally vest 50% after 2 years and 50% after 3 years.

Non-executive directors
Remuneration for the non-executive directors is paid as fees for their
services in attending Board and Board committee meetings and
actioning matters arising therefrom. They do not participate in any
bonus scheme and are not entitled to any other benefits.

Details of the directors’ remuneration for the year are provided in note
6 to the accounts. Share option details for each director are disclosed
in the Directors’ Report on page 12.
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report together with the Group and
the company’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2007.

Date of Incorporation
Following the Scheme of Arrangement approved by shareholders in
August 2007, the holding company was re-incorporated on the Isle of
Man on 19 September 2007. The new Isle of Man company created
for this purpose was incorporated on 6 July 2007.

Principal activities and business review
The principal activities of the Group during the year were real estate
investment management, property construction and property
management. A review of the Group’s trading activities during the
year, its financial results and its prospects are given in the Chairman’s
Statement on page 2, the Chief Executive’s Review on page 4 and the
Finance Review on page 5.

Results and dividends
The consolidated income statement is set out on page 15 and shows
the profit for the year.

The directors recommend the payment of a final ordinary dividend of
0.5 pence per share.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The Group’s asset management activities face the risks of possible
decreases in property values on existing funds under management
and changes in market conditions when planning future funds. These
risks are addressed by focusing on geographical locations where there
is perceived to be considerable growth potential.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the contracting business
relate to client intentions and spending plans. These are dealt with by
maintaining close business relationships with our current clients,
offering full support and turnkey solutions, and by continuing to
prospect for business from new clients.

Details on financial risk management are shown in note 21 to the
financial statements.

Disclosure of information to auditors
The directors who were in office on the date of approval of these
financial statements have confirmed, as far as they are aware, that
there is no relevant audit information of which the auditors are
unaware. Each of the directors has confirmed that they have taken all
the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that it has been communicated to the auditors.

Third party indemnity insurance for directors
The company holds a Directors and Officers insurance policy which
provides cover for directors and senior managers of the holding
company and subsidiaries.

Subsequent events
1. On 12 January 2008 the company granted 200,000 share

options at an exercise price of 46p per share, exercisable
between 12 January 2011 and 12 January 2018.

2. On 1 April 2008 the company issued 180,068 ordinary shares at
par in respect of an exercise of share options.

3. On 22 January 2008, Speymill 2007 Limited, the former UK
holding company, applied to the high court to eliminate the deficit
on its profit and loss account by cancellation against its share
premium and capital redemption accounts. The application was
approved and registered on 7 February 2008.

4. On 7 February 2008 Speymill Macau Property Company plc
entered into an agreement to dispose of its interest in one of its
investment properties. This will result in the payment of
performance and disposal fees totalling c.£1.6m to Speymill
Property Group Limited during the second quarter of 2008.

5. A dividend of 0.5 pence per share in respect of the year ended 
31 December 2007 is to be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting, payable on 20 June 2008 to shareholders on the
register as at 23 May 2008.

Directors and their interests
The present membership of the Board is set out on pages 6 and 7.

Simon Cain and Sean Dowling were appointed as the first directors of
the company on 6 July 2007 and both resigned on 9 July 2007.

Jim Mellon, Bob MacDonald, Andrew Latham, Keith Lees, Denham
Eke, Sir James Mellon and Ilyas Khan were each appointed as
directors on 9 July 2007 and then all served from that date
throughout the rest of the year.

The beneficial interests of directors in the share capital of the
company as at the year end were:

31 Dec 19 Sept
2007 2007

Ordinary Ordinary
Shares Shares

of 1 pence of 1 pence
No. No.

Jim Mellon 26,148,490 26,148,490
Bob MacDonald 2,045,454 2,045,454
Sir James Mellon 261,580 261,580
IIyas Khan 100,000 —
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Share Options
31 Dec 19 Sept
2007 2006
No. No.

Bob MacDonald 2,035,535 2,035,535
Andrew Latham 1,098,311 1,098,311
Keith Lees 510,519 510,519
IIyas Khan 530,940 530,940
Sir James Mellon 163,366 163,366

No other directors had any interest in the share capital of the
company.

The company was incorporated on 6 July 2007 and the Scheme of
Arrangement to transfer shareholdings from the former UK holding
company became effective on 19 September 2007, therefore
comparative figures have been shown as at that date.

Substantial shareholdings
As at 11 April 2008, no notifications had been received in respect of
shareholdings, other than directors, which exceed 3% of the issued
ordinary shares of the company.

Share capital
The company initially issued two subscriber shares on incorporation. 

On 19 September 2007, under the approved Scheme of
Arrangement, the company issued 57,968,848 ordinary shares of 1p
each on a one for one basis to replace all shareholdings in the former
UK holding company. The two original subscriber shares are to be
cancelled.

Controlling party
Burnbrae Limited and its beneficial owner Jim Mellon effectively
control the company by virtue of their combined shareholding 
of 45.0%.

Auditors
A resolution to reappoint KPMG Audit LLC as auditors will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting. 

Special business
Resolutions 12 to 15 inclusive in the Notice of Annual General
Meeting on pages 38 and 39 deal with special business as follows:

Resolution 12 waives the pre-emption rights under article 5.2(a) of the
Company’s Articles of Association in respect ot the allotment of equity
securities for cash. The nominal amount of equity securities which
may be issued without being offered to existing shareholders is
£173,865. This authority will expire at the earlier of either the
conclusion of the 2009 Annual General Meeting or 15 months after
passing the resolution.

Resolution 13 authorises the company to make market purchases of
its own ordinary shares, subject to a limit of 5,796,884 shares
(representing approximately 10% of the issued ordinary share capital)
and to a maximum price per ordinary share of 105% of the mid-
market price and a minimum price of 1p. This authority will expire at
the earlier of either the conclusion of the 2009 Annual General
Meeting or 15 months after passing the resolution.

Resolution 14 authorises the company to purchase the two original
subscriber shares in order that these can be cancelled.

Resolution 15 approves the change of name of the company from
Speymill Group plc to Speymill plc.

The directors believe that all of the above resolutions are in the best
interests of the company and its shareholders and they therefore
recommend shareholders to vote in favour of the resolutions.

By order of the Board

N Holmes
Secretary

18 April 2008
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the 
Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for
each financial year, which meet the requirements of Isle of Man
company law. In addition, the directors have elected to prepare the
financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

The Group and parent company financial statements are required by
law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
parent company and of the profit or loss for that period. 

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

● select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

● make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; 

● state whether applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

● prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and parent
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the parent company and to enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Isle of Man Companies Acts
1931 to 2004. They have general responsibility for taking such steps
as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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We have audited the Group and parent company financial statements
of Speymill Group plc for the year ended 31 December 2007 which
comprise the Group Income Statement, the Group and parent
company Balance Sheets, the Group Cash Flow Statement and the
Group Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes. These
financial statements have been prepared under the accounting
policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with section 15 of the Companies Act 1982. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the financial statements in
accordance with applicable Isle of Man company law and
International Financial Reporting Standards are set out in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 13.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements
give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance with
Isle of Man Companies Acts 1931 to 2004. We also report to you
whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report is
consistent with the financial statements. 

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the company has not
kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information
specified by law regarding directors’ transactions with the company is
not disclosed.

We read the Directors’ Report and any other information
accompanying the financial statements and consider the implications
for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
inconsistencies within it.

Basis of opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the UK Auditing Practices
Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It
also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Group and company’s circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our
opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:

● the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, of the state of
the Group and parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2007
and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended; 

● the financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Isle of Man Companies Acts 1931 to 2004;
and

● the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with
the financial statements.

KPMG Audit LLC
Chartered Accountants
Heritage Court
41 Athol Street
Douglas
Isle of Man
IM99 1HN

18 April 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Notes £’000 £’000

Turnover 2, 3 52,699 22,305 
Cost of sales (39,938) (16,838)
Gross profit 12,761 5,467 
General administrative expenses (9,275) (5,077)
Share based payments 17 (794) (906)
Re-incorporation costs 2 (394) —
Total operating costs (10,463) (5,983)
Profit/(loss) from operations 2,298 (516)
Net finance costs 5 (39) (9)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 2,259 (525)
Taxation 7 (168) 217 
Profit/(loss) after taxation 2,091 (308)

Earnings/(loss) per share (pence)

Basic 8 3.63 (0.55)
Diluted 8 3.28 (0.55)

The directors consider all results to derive from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 19 to 37 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheets
As at 31 December 2007

2007 2007 2006 2006
Group Company Group Company

Notes £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets — goodwill 9 944 — 944 —
Property, plant and equipment 10 486 — 197 — 
Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures 11 — 885 — —
Available-for-sale financial assets 12 566 — — —
Deferred tax assets 16 146 — 255 —

2,142 885 1,396 —
Current assets
Inventories 43 — 33 —
Due from customers for contract work 8,036 — 3,607 —
Trade and other receivables 13 9,898 731 3,824 —
Cash and cash equivalents 1,504 — 647 —

19,481 731 8,111 —
Total assets 21,623 1,616 9,507 —
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 12,884 822 3,710 —
Due to suppliers for contract work 3,532 — 3,466 —
Redeemable loan notes 14 — — 39 —
Obligations under finance leases 15 11 — 10 —
Current tax liabilities 97 — 38 —

16,524 822 7,263 —
Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance lease 31 — 39 —
Total liabilities 16,555 822 7,302 —
Net assets 5,068 794 2,205 —
Equity
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 19 580 580 571 —
Capital redemption reserve 2,294 — 2,294 —
Share premium account 7,852 — 7,847 —
Share-based payments reserve 1,588 1,588 794 —
Fair value reserve (71) — — —
Foreign currency reserve 35 — — —
Retained earnings (7,210) (1,374) (9,301) —

5,068 794 2,205 — 

The company incurred a loss of £962,000 (2006: nil) for the year ended 31 December 2007.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 April 2008 and were signed on their behalf by

R C MacDonald K A Lees
Director Director

The notes on pages 19 to 37 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
As at 31 December 2007

Share-
Capital based Fair Foreign

Called up redemption Share payment value currency Retained Total
share capital reserve premium reserve reserve reserve earnings equity

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Balance at 31 December 2005 559 2,294 7,814 110 — — (9,215) 1,562 
Issue of ordinary shares 12 — 39 — — — — 51 
Share-based payments
— share options — — 2 379 — — — 381
— share issues — — — 527 — — — 527
Transfers relating to share-based payment — — — (222) — — 222 —
Issue costs — — (8) — — — — (8)
Loss for the year — — — — — — (308) (308)
Balance at 31 December 2006 571 2,294 7,847 794 — — (9,301) 2,205 
Share-based payments
— share options — — — 530 — — — 530
— share issues 9 — 5 264 — — — 278
Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets — — — — (71) — — (71)
Currency translation differences on foreign 
currency investments — — — — — 35 — 35
Profit for the year — — — — — — 2,091 2,091
Balance at 31 December 2007 580 2,294 7,852 1,588 (71) 35 (7,210) 5,068

The notes on pages 19 to 37 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2007 2006
£’000 £’000

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash generated from operations 1,929 (8)
Income taxes received — 1
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 1,929 (7)

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 71 —
Acquisition of investments (637) —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (396) (203)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (962) (203)

Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of equity shares 14 45
Repayments of convertible loans — (150)
Repayments of redeemable loan notes (39) (131)
Finance lease principal repayments (10) (28)
Interest paid (105) (9)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (140) (273)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 827 (483)
Translation 30 4
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 647 1,126
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,504 647
Cash and cash equivalents comprises: 
Cash and deposits 1,504 647

1,504 647
Cash generated from operations
Profit/(loss) from operations 2,298 (516)
Adjusted for:
Depreciation 124 86
Share-based payments 794 906
Increase in inventories (10) (22)
Increase in receivables (10,503) (4,059)
Increase in payables 9,226 3,597
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operations 1,929 (8)

The notes on pages 19 to 37 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Reporting entity
Speymill Group plc is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in the Isle of Man. The address of the company’s
registered office is 1st Floor, Regent House, 16–18 Ridgeway Street, Douglas, Isle of Man, IM1 1EN.

The consolidated financial statements of the company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2007 comprise the company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group and individually as “Group entities”) and the Group’s interest in associates and
jointly controlled entities. The Group is primarily involved in real estate investment management, property construction and property
management.

1.1 Basis of preparation
(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
and its interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

These are the Group’s and company’s first financial statements prepared under IFRS, and IFRS 1 ‘First Time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards’ has been applied. The last financial statements under UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (“UK GAAP”) were prepared for the 12 months to 31 December 2006.

An explanation of how the transition to IFRS has affected the reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Group is provided in note 23. This note includes reconciliation of equity and profit or loss for the comparative year reported under UK
GAAP to those reported for periods under IFRS. 

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issuance on 18 April 2008.

Standards issued by International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) not effective for the current year and not adopted by the Group
The following standards and interpretations have been issued by the IASB. They became effective after the current year and have not
been early adopted by the Group and company.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments introduces the “management approach” to segment reporting. IFRS 8, which becomes mandatory for the
Group’s 2009 financial statements, will require the disclosure of segment information based on the internal reports regularly reviewed by
the Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker in order to assess each segment’s performance and to allocate resources to them.
Currently the Group presents segment information in respect of its business and geographical segments (see note 2). Under the
management approach, the Group will present segment information in respect of property fund management, fit out and construction
of leisure premises, and property management services.

Revised IAS 23 Borrowing Costs removes the option to expense borrowing costs and requires that an entity capitalise borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. The revised
lAS 23 will become mandatory for the Group’s 2009 financial statements and will constitute a change in accounting policy for the
Group. In accordance with the transitional provisions the Group will apply the revised IAS 23 to qualifying assets for which
capitalisation of borrowing costs commences on or after the effective date.

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 – Group and Treasury Share Transactions requires a share-based payment arrangement in which an entity receives
goods or services as consideration for its own equity instruments to be accounted for as an equity-settled share-based payment
transaction, regardless of how the equity instruments are obtained. IFRIC 11 will become mandatory for the Group’s 2008 financial
statements, with retrospective application required. It is not expected to have any impact on the consolidated financial statements.

We have assessed the significance of these new standards applicable from 1 January 2008 and 1 January 2009 and concluded they
will have no material financial impact.

(b) Basis of measurement and functional currency
The Group consolidated financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, rounded to the nearest thousand. They have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except where assets and liabilities are required to be stated at their fair value.

(c) Use of estimates and judgement
The preparation of Group consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience, current and expected economic conditions, and in
some cases actuarial techniques and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(c) Use of estimates and judgement (continued)
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised and or in future periods, if applicable.

The more significant areas requiring the use of management estimates and assumptions relate to the basis of future cash flow
estimates, asset impairments and the fair value and accounting treatment of financial instruments and contingent liabilities.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial
statements. They have also been applied in preparing an opening IFRS balance sheet at 1 January 2006 for the purposes of the
transition to IFRS as required by IFRS 1. The impact of the transition from UK GAAP is explained in note 23.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

1.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
Bases of consolidation
a) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. The accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Group.

b) Joint ventures
Joint ventures are those entities over which the Group has joint control, established by contractual agreement. The consolidated
financial statements include the Group’s proportionate share of the joint venture entities’ assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses
with items of a similar nature on a line by line basis, from the date that joint control commences until the date that joint control
ceases.

c) Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the entity. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the approximate exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the
translation at the year-end exchange rate of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical costs in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at
fair value are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates ruling at the date the fair value was determined. 

Financial statements of foreign operations
The asset and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation, generally are
translated into pounds sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.

The revenues and expenses of foreign operations excluding foreign operations in hyper inflationary economies generally are translated
to pounds sterling at rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
differences arising on retranslation are recognised directly in a separate component of equity. Since 1 January 2006, the date of
transition to IFRSs such differences have been recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation is
disposed of in part or in full, the relevant amount in the foreign currency reserve is transferred to profit and loss.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and
services provided to customers outside the Group in the normal course of business net of Value Added Tax.

The Group revenue comprises the following:
● Fee income due on fund and property management services is accrued based on assets under management and rents received.
● Performance fees arising upon the achievement of specified targets are recognised when such performance fees are confirmed

as receivable, or when there is a crystallising event.
● Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking account of the principal outstanding and the effective rate over the

period to maturity, when it is determined that such income will accrue to the Group.
● Revenue from construction is recognised in accordance with the policy on construction contracts below.
● Commissions receivable on other services provided to the property funds (e.g. fund-raisings and disposals) are recognised when

the related transaction is complete.

Construction contracts 
As soon as the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and costs are recognised over the period of the
contract. Where it is probable that total costs will exceed contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

The Group uses the “percentage completion method” to determine the appropriate amount to recognise in the given period. The stage
of completion is measured by reference to the contract costs incurred up to the balance sheet date as a percentage of the total
estimated costs for the contract.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount due from customers for all work in progress for which costs incurred plus
recognised profit less recognised losses exceed progress billings.

Progress billings not yet paid by customers are included within trade and other receivables. The Group presents as a liability the gross
amounts due to suppliers for contract work for all contracts in progress for which progress billings exceed cost incurred plus
recognised profits less recognised losses.

Segmental reporting
Segmental reporting is based on a two segment format, of which the primary format is the business areas in accordance with the
Group’s internal reporting structure and the secondary format is for geographical areas.

Further information on the business activities of each segment is set out on page 25.

Segment results represent the contribution directly attributable for the various segments to corporate overheads and the profit of the
Group. Segment assets and liabilities comprise those assets and liabilities directly attributable to segments. 

Financing costs
Interest payable on borrowings is calculated using the effective interest rate method. Other charges include bank charges and
commission costs. The interest expense component of finance lease payments is recognised in the income statement using the
effective interest rate method.

Taxation
The tax charge is composed of current tax and deferred tax, calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or subsequently enacted
by the balance sheet date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax and deferred tax are charged or
credited to the income statement except where it relates directly to equity in which case the relevant tax is also dealt with in equity.

Current tax is based on the profit for the year. Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 

Deferred tax on assets and liabilities is not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill not deductible for tax
purposes, or from the initial recognition of other assets or liabilities in a transaction that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits
and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in future. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of the dilutive potential of share options granted to employees.

Intangible assets — goodwill
All business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method.

Goodwill represents the excess of fair value consideration over the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired, arising
on the acquisition of subsidiaries and other business entities, joint ventures and associates.

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries and other business entities is included in non-current assets. Goodwill on acquisition of joint
ventures and associates is included in investments in joint ventures and associates.

Goodwill is reviewed annually for impairment and is carried at costs less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is included when
determining the profit or loss on subsequent disposal of the business to which it relates.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition 1 January 2006 has been retained at the previous UK GAAP value and is
no longer amortised but is tested at least annually for impairment, and more frequently if events or change indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired and is carried at costs less accumulated impairment losses. For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to the cash generating units on which it arose. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement and not subsequently reversed. Negative goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised directly in profit and loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment losses. Costs
include purchase costs together with any incidental expenses associated with bringing the asset to its operating location and
condition. Property plant and equipment are depreciated over their expected useful lives as follows:

Short leasehold improvements — over the period of the lease
Fixtures and fittings — 3–5 years
Motor vehicles — 4 years

Gains and losses on disposals of any item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from the
disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised with “other income” in profit or loss. When
revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in the revaluation surplus reserve are transferred to retained earnings.

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment when events and circumstances indicate that it is not
recoverable. Any impairment is charged to the income statement immediately.

Impairment of assets 
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible fixed assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. For tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill, the
cash-generating unit is considered to be a business segment. For goodwill, the cash-generating unit is considered to be the business
on which the goodwill arose.

An impairment charge is recognised in the income statement in the year in which it occurs. Where an impairment loss, other than an
impairment loss on goodwill, subsequently reverses due to a change in its original estimate, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. The increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
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1.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Share capital
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share options are
recognised as a deduction from equity net of any tax effects.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost comprises material and direct labour appropriate to the relevant
stage of completion. Net realisable value is based on the estimated contract price less all further costs to completion.

Retirement benefit costs 
The Group operates a defined contribution scheme. Contributions to the scheme are charged to the income statement as they become
payable according to the scheme rules.

Share-based payments
Employee services received in exchange for the grant of share options, performance share plan awards and deferred bonus plan
awards are charged in the income statement over the vesting period based on the fair values of the options or awards at the date of
grant. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest.

For share options the fair value is calculated using the Black–Scholes model and the vesting period is between 0–3 years. For share
issues, the fair value is the market value of the shares issued. The corresponding credits in respect of amounts charged to the income
statement are included in a separate reserve in equity until such time that the option or awards are exercised.

Leasing
Leases which transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as finance leases. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value or if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease, and depreciation is provided accordingly.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and the reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also spread on a straight-line basis.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation, whether legal or constructive, as a result of a past event for
which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

A contingent liability is not recognised on the balance sheet except in a business combination. A contingent liability is disclosed
when the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not remote.
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1.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
declared and authorised, i.e. no longer at the discretion of the entity. 

Financial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments include investments in equity, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and
borrowings and trade and other payables.

Non-derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value when the Group becomes a party to their contractual
arrangements. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of financial instruments, except financial instruments
classified as at fair value through profit and loss. The subsequent measurement of financial instruments is dealt with below.

If the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold debt securities to maturity, then they are classified as held-to-maturity. Held-
to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets
The Group’s investments in equity securities and certain debt securities are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on available-for-sale monetary items, are recognised directly in equity. When an investment is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to profit or loss.

The Group has not designated any financial asset or liability as measured at fair value through profit and loss.

A financial asset is derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired or the company has transferred its
rights to receive cash and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assets.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the proceeds received or receivable and the carrying amount of the
asset is included in income.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of the liability extinguished or transferred to
another party and the amount paid for is included in income.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at their fair value on initial recognition and subsequently at costs less impairment loses.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and are subsequently measured at cost as
they have a short-term maturity.

Cash which is subject to legal or contractual restrictions on use is classified separately.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities, other than derivatives, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Trade payables
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are stated at nominal value.

Bank borrowings 
Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including
premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs are charged to income on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent they are not settled in the period in which
they arise.
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2 Segmental information — Business segments
2007 Construction Investment

and fund Property Group
refurbishment management management costs Elimination Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
External revenues 41,372 6,436 4,891 — — 52,699
Inter-segment revenue — — 788 — (788) —
Total segment revenue 41,372 6,436 5,679 — (788) 52,699
Profit from operations before reincorporation

costs and share-based payments 918 2,632 841 (905) — 3,486
Share-based payments (102) (558) (12) (122) (794)
Reincorporation costs(1) — — — (394) — (394)
Net finance cost — — — (39) — (39)
Profit before tax 816 2,074 829 (1,460) — 2,259
Depreciation and non cash expenses (156) (558) (81) (123) — (918)
Total assets 12,705 5,324 3,535 59 — 21,623
Total liabilities (11,462) (1,950) (2,567) (576) — (16,555)
Capital expenditure 219 — 177 — — 396

(1) The reincorporation costs relate to legal and professional fees incurred in setting up and registering the new Isle of Man holding
company.

2006 Construction Investment
and fund Property Group

refurbishment management management costs Elimination Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

External revenues 18,143 2,745 1,417 — — 22,305
Inter-segment revenue — — 338 — (338) —
Total segment revenue 18,143 2,745 1,755 — (338) 22,305
Profit from operations before 

share-based payments 261 690 40 (601) — 390
Share-based payments — (305) — (601) — (906)
Net finance cost — — — (9) — (9)
Profit/(loss) before tax 261 385 40 (1,211) (525)
Depreciation and non cash expenses (60) (305) (26) (601) — (992)
Total assets 4,921 1,939 600 2,047 — 9,507
Total liabilities (5,309) (865) (560) (568) — (7,302)
Capital expenditure 118 — 85 — — 203

Segmental information — Geographical presentation
2007 United Continental Isle of

Kingdom Europe Far East Man Elimination Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

External turnover 41,372 11,276 839 — (788) 52,699
Segment assets 12,705 8,147 712 59 — 21,623
Capital expenditure 219 177 — — — 396

2006 United Continental Isle of
Kingdom Europe Far East Man Elimination Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
External turnover 18,143 4,440 60 — (338) 22,305
Segment assets 6,965 2,420 122 — — 9,507
Capital expenditure 118 85 — — — 203
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3 Performance fees
Speymill Property Group Limited as fund manager and Avila Capital Limited as property advisor to Speymill Macau Property Company
plc (SMP) are jointly entitled to receive a 20% performance fee based on the increase in Net Asset Value per ordinary share of SMP
being over the stated bench mark of a 10% compound rate increase in Net Asset Values per annum.

Under the agreement, 50% of the performance fee which is payable to the extent and only if SMP has realised profits from its
investments is required to be applied in acquiring ordinary shares in SMP.

On 7 February 2008, SMP entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement in order to dispose of one of its investment properties.

The performance fee of £1.254m receivable by the Group in respect of the sale has not, in accordance with the agreement, been
accrued in the consolidated financial statements as the performance fee was not earned in the year.

4 Profit/(loss) from operations
2007 2006
£’000 £’000

Profit/(loss) from operations is stated after charging:
Depreciation — owned assets 98 61

— leased assets 26 25
Operating lease payments — plant and machinery, land and buildings 166 54

— other 18 29
Net foreign currency exchange gain/(loss) 91 (4)
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit of parent company and consolidated financial statements 27 25 
Audit of subsidiary company financial statements 59 15 
Tax services 21 15 
Other services 35 6 

142 61 

All the above fees have been charged to the income statement.

5 Net finance costs
2007 2006
£’000 £’000

Bank interest receivable 78 97
Other interest — 4

78 101
Bank interest payable (110) (97)
Loan interest (6) (9)
Finance lease charges (1) (4)

(117) (110)
(39) (9)
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6 Information regarding directors and employees
Staff costs during the year including directors amounted to:

2007 2006
Directors’ remuneration £’000 £’000
Salaries and benefits 551 504
Pension — defined contribution 39 34
Directors’ fees 73 50

663 588

2007 2006
£’000 £’000

Wages and salaries (including directors’ remuneration) 6,230 3,198
Social security costs 742 407
Pension 318 79
Share-based payments (see note 17) 794 906

8,084 4,590

The pension contributions shown above are in respect of defined contribution schemes.

7 Taxation
2007 2006

Taxation charge £’000 £’000
Current income tax expense
UK tax on profit/(loss) — 16
Overseas income tax on joint venture 59 22
Total current tax 59 38
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences 109 (255)
Total deferred tax charge/(credit) 109 (255
Total tax charge/(credit) in the income statement 168 (217)

Tax reconciliation
Income tax in the Isle of Man at 0% (2006: UK corporation tax at 30%) — (174)
Non deductible expenses — 42
Share-based payments — 272
Capital depreciation in excess of allowances — (3)
Tax losses not utilised — (102)
Higher tax rates on overseas earnings 59 3
Current tax charge 59 38

8 Earnings/(loss) per share
2007 2006

Profit/(loss) for the year (£’000) 2,091 (308)
Basic weighted average number of shares in issue 57,539,447 56,371,951

Dilutive potential ordinary shares
Employee share options and provision for share issue 6,240,926 —

Reconciliation of earnings per share to diluted earnings per share
Earnings/(loss) per share 3.63 (0.55)
Dilutive effect of employee share options and provision for share issue (0.35) —
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share 3.28 (0.55)
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9 Intangible assets — goodwill
Group
£’000

Cost
At 1 January 2007 and 31 December 2007 4,115
Amortisation and Impairment
At 1 January 2007 (as previously stated) 3,226
Adjustment to goodwill on adoption of IFRS (note 23) (55)
At 1 January 2007 and 31 December 2007 3,171
Net book value
At 1 January 2007 and 31 December 2007 944

The above goodwill relates to the construction and refurbishment business which is both a cash-generating unit and a reportable
segment. The recoverable amount of goodwill on the construction and refurbishment business unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by senior managers.

10 Property, plant and equipment
Leasehold 
property Fixtures and Motor

improvements equipment vehicles Total
Group £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Cost
At 1 January 2007 40 363 127 530 
Additions 107 289 — 396 
Disposals (41) (163) — (204)
Exchange adjustments — 11 — 11 
At 31 December 2007 106 500 127 733
Depreciation
At 1 January 2007 40 218 75 333 
Charge for the year — 98 26 124 
Disposals (40) (167) — (207)
Exchange adjustments — (3) — (3)
At 31 December 2007 — 146 101 247 
Net book value
At 31 December 2007 106 354 26 486 
At 31 December 2006 — 145 52 197 

At 31 December 2007 the net carrying amount of motor vehicles held under finance leases was £32,000 (2006: 58,000).
Depreciation charged in the year on assets held under finance leases was £25,927 (2006: £24,748).
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11 Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures
Company

2007 2006
£’000 £’000

Shares in Group undertakings
Additions (on restructuring — see below) 885 —
At 31 December 2007 885 — 

The company holds more than 20% of the equity (and not other share or loan capital) of the following undertakings:

Country of Proportion 
incorporation directly held Nature of business

Subsidiary undertakings:
Speymill 2007 Limited UK 100% Management services
Speymill Contracts Limited(1) UK 100% Property construction

and refurbishment within 
hotel and leisure industries

Speymill Property Group Limited IOM 100% Investment fund management
Speymill Property Group (Far East) Limited(2) Hong Kong 100% Investment fund management
First National Property UK 100% Repair and maintenance of 
Maintenance Limited residential property

(Dormant)

Wigmore Estates Limited UK 100% Holding Company
Wigmore (South West) Limited UK 100% Holding Company
Wigmore Homes Limited UK 100% Dormant

Country of Proportion 
incorporation directly held Nature of business

Associated undertakings:
Joint venture:
GOAL Service GmbH(4) Germany 51% Property management
GOAL Construction GmbH(3) Germany 51% Property construction and

refurbishment services
GOAL facility management GmbH(3) Germany 51% Facility Management Services
Speymill Goodman Retirement Villages Limited IOM 50% Development and operation

of retirement village facilties

(1) 100% of the ordinary shares held indirectly through Wigmore Estates Limited
(2) 100% of the ordinary shares held indirectly through Speymill Property Group Limited
(3) 51% of the ordinary shares held indirectly through GOAL Services GmBH
(4) Goal Service GmbH is a joint venture with Florian Lanz who holds 49% of the ordinary shares. GOAL Service GmbH which trades
from Spandauer Damm 73, 14059, Berlin, is managed by a Board of 4 directors.

The analysis of the Group’s interest in GOAL is set out below.
2007

51% shareholding
£’000

Turnover 5,679
Profit before tax 829
Taxation (281)
Profit after tax 548
Non-current assets 177
Current assets 3,358
Current liabilities 2,567
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11 Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures (continued)

Group restructuring
During the year the company reorganised its corporate structure by way of a scheme of arrangement under section 425 of the
Companies Act 1985. It incorporated a new parent company — Speymill Group PLC (SGIOM) in the Isle of Man which subscribed for
57,968,848 new shares issued by the former holding company Speymill Group PLC, (SGUK). Shareholders of SGUK at that date
received one share in SGIOM for every share held in SGUK. All shares excluding the new shares in SGUK were cancelled and SGUK
was re-registered as a private company named Speymill 2007 Limited. SGIOM was admitted to trading on the AIM exchange on 
19 September 2007.

12 Available-for-sale financial assets
2007 2006
£’000 £’000

Non-current assets
At 1 January 2007
Additions 637 —
Fair value adjustment (71) —
At 31 December 2007 566 —

During the year, the Group received 0.75% of placing proceeds as consideration for work in structuring the placing of C shares in
Speymill Deutsche Immoblien Company plc. The consideration was part paid in cash and part by the issue to the Group of 937,000
shares in Speymill Deutsche Immoblien Company Plc.

13 Trade and other receivables
2007 2007 2006 2006
Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Trade debtors 8,074 — 3,553 —
Amounts owed by Group undertakings(1) — 672 — —
Amount owed by Joint venture 36 — 41 —
Other trade receivables and prepayments 1,788 59 230 —

9,898 731 3,824 —

(1) Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured, subject to interest at market rate and have no fixed date of repayment.
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14 Trade and other payables
2007 2007 2006 2006
Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Trade creditors 4,402 — 2,609 —
Amounts owed to Group undertakings(1) — 681 — —
Other taxation and social security 410 2 173 —
Other creditors 1,060 16 34 —
Accruals and deferred income 7,012 123 894 —

12,884 822 3,710 —

(1) Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured, subject to interest at market rate and have no fixed date of repayment.

The redeemable loan notes bore interest at the rate of 1.5% above the base rate and were fully paid in July 2007.

15 Obligations under finance leases
2007 2006
Group Group
£’000 £’000

Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase
Less than one year 11 10
Between one and five years 31 39

42 49

Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts are secured on the assets concerned.

16 Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of tax losses and other temporary differences where it is probable that these
assets will be recognised. The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are shown below.

2007 2006
Group Group
£’000 £’000

Deferred tax assets comprise
Tax losses 342 255
Accelerated capital allowances 14 —
Short-term timing differences (210) —
Deferred tax asset 146 255

Potential deferred tax assets, primarily relating to trading losses not recognised, was Nil (2006: £1.6m). In addition potential
deferred tax assets relating to capital losses amount to £0.240m (2006: £0.269m).
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17 Share based payments 
Under the terms of the scheme of arrangement which became effective on 19 September 2007, SGIOM granted share options to all
existing share option holders in SGUK on exactly the same terms as the original share options grant.

The options at 31 December 2007 are shown below.
Number of Exercise Option 

Date of ordinary price exercise
Date of original grant new grant shares per share period 
26/07/2005 12/11/07 5,636,131 22p July 2008 – July 2015
10/10/2005 12/11/07 174,539 44.85p October 2008 – October 2015
11/10/2005 12/11/07 2,035,535 45.30p October 2008 – October 2015
01/01/2006 12/11/07 50,000 50p January 2009 – February 2016
20/02/2006 12/11/07 50,000 65p February 2009 – January 2016
22/05/2006 12/11/07 77,273 1p Up to May 2016
20/10/2006 12/11/07 260,000 48.9p October 2009 – July 2016
18/01/2007 12/11/07 30,000 67.45p January 2010 – January 2017
12/03/2007 12/11/07 350,000 65p March 2010 – March 2017
12/03/2007 12/11/07 400,000 81.2p March 2010 – March 2017
02/04/2007 12/11/07 60,000 86.1p April 2010 – April 2017
02/07/2007 12/11/07 150,000 99.35p July 2010 – July 2017
02/07/2007 12/11/07 2,500 99.35p Up to July  2017
27/07/2007 12/11/07 30,000 96.6p July 2010 – July 2017
27/09/2007 12/11/07 180,068 1p Up to September 2017(1)

26/10/2007 12/11/07 64,000 93.5p October 2010 – October 2017
— 3/12/07 100,000 57.3p Nov 2010 – Nov 2017
— 10/12/07 5,257 53.85p Nov 2010 – Nov 2017

(1) The options were exercised on 20 March 2008.

Under the new share option scheme, options are granted with a fixed exercise price equal to the market price at the date of grant. 
The contractual life of an option is 10 years with the option becoming exercisable on the third anniversary of the date of grant.

During the year the outstanding share options under the Inland Revenue approved scheme lapsed and the scheme was closed.

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is based on the fair value of the share options granted using 
the Black–Scholes model with the following inputs:

2007 2006
Share price at grant date 1p–99.35 1p–75.25p
Exercise price 1p–99.35 1p–75.25p
Weighted average fair value at grant date 36p 28p
Expected volatility 40% 40%
Expected life (years) 3–5 3–5
Risk free rate 4.61%–5.67% 4.17%–4.92%
Dividend yield Nil Nil

The expected volatility is based on the volatility over the last 4 years weighted for the volatility post the share consolidation in July 2005.
The expected life is the average period to exercise. The risk free rate of return is the rate of interest obtainable from 5 year UK gilts.

A reconciliation of the share option movements over the year to 31 December is shown below

2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
average average

exercise price exercise price
Options (in pence) Options (in pence)

Outstanding at 1 January 8,760,640 29.49 9,199,322 30.15
Additions 2,066,568 66.80 760,317 41.72
Forfeited/lapsed during the year (1,277,162) 52.00 (1,123,142) 26.42
Expired during the year — — (75,857) 280.22
Transferred from SGUK scheme (9,550,046) (34.62) — —
Transferred to SGIOM scheme 9,550,046 34.62 — —
Granted after 12/11/07 105,257 57.12 — —
Outstanding at 31 December 9,655,303 34.86 8,760,640 29.49
Exercisable at 31 December 259,841 1.94 77,723 1.00

No share options were exercised during the year. The options outstanding at 31 December had a weighted average exercise price of 
34.86 pence and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 7.3 years.
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17 Share based payments (continued)
2007 2006
£’000 £’000

Share options 530 379
Provision for share issue 264 527
Total share-based payment expense 794 906

18 Operating lease commitments
As at 31 December 2007, the Group was committed to making the following payments during the next year in respect of operating
leases:

Land and buildings Other
2007 2006 2007 2006
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Leases which expire:
Within one year 140 32 17 18
Within two to five years 381 — 86 69

521 32 103 87

19 Called up share capital
2007 2006
£’000 £’000

Authorised
500,000,000 ordinary shares of 1p each 5,000 —

5,000 —
Issued and fully paid
At 1 January 2007 — —
Additional during the year 
57,968,850 ordinary shares of 1p each 580 —
At 31 December 2007 580 —

Changes in share capital in the year
During the year, the company carried out a strategic review of existing business and key areas of opportunity and concluded that due
to the increasing international focus of its asset management business which it believes offers future growth opportunities, it was no
longer in the best interests of Speymill shareholders for the parent company of the Speymill Group to be a UK registered company.
Accordingly the company has, through a scheme of arrangement, created a new Isle of Man holding company (SGIOM).

The key features of the scheme of arrangement pursuant to s425 of the UK Companies Act included:

a) Cancellation of all the shares of the former UK holding company — Speymill Group plc (Speymill 2007 Limited)
b) Speymill 2007 Limited issued new shares to Speymill Group plc Isle of Man so that it owns all the issued share capital of

Speymill UK 2007
c) Speymill 2007 Limited shareholders received 1 share in Speymill Group plc Isle of Man for each Speymill 2007 Limited share

cancelled
d) Speymill 2007 Limited re-registered as a private company.

Capital Management
The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. The Board manages the business so as to achieve a return on capital employed which the
company defines as profit after tax divided by total shareholders’ equity. In 2007 the return was 41.2% (2006: -13.9%). There were
no changes in the company’s approach to capital management during the year.

The company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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20 Related party transactions
Parent and ultimate controlling party
The directors consider the company to be effectively controlled by Burnbrae Limited and its beneficial owner, Jim Mellon by virtue of
their combined share holding of 45.0%. Burnbrae Limited is incorporated in the Isle of Man.

Transactions with management personnel
During the year Jim Mellon and Bob MacDonald, directors of the Company were in receipt of building works at normal commercial
rates from a subsidiary company amounting to £256,817 and £16,536 respectively. There was no outstanding balance in respect of
these transactions at the end of the year.

Key management personnel compensation
2007 2006
£’000 £’000

Short-term employee benefits 1,095 968
Directors’ fees 73 50
Post-employment benefits (defined contribution) 66 47
Share-based payment 501 745

1,735 1,810

21 Financial instruments
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise available-for-sale investments, cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables
and payables that arise directly from its operations, the main purpose of which is to finance the company’s operations.

The principal risks which the Group is exposed to relate to market price risks, liquidity risks, credit risks, interest rate risks and
foreign exchange risks.

Market price risks
Equity price risk arises from available-for-sale equity securities held as an investment. Management of the Group monitors this
investment based on market indices and overall Group objectives.

Exposure to supplier price risks exists in the contracting business. These are covered as far as possible by including escalation
clauses in contracts where appropriate, placing fixed price subcontracts against fixed sales price contracts and negotiating bulk
supply prices with major material suppliers.

Liquidity risks
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will be unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Group’s exposure to contractual maturities of financial liabilities relate mainly to trade and other payables.

Management controls and monitors the Group’s cashflow on a regular basis, including forecasting future cash flow. Banking facilities
are kept under review and renegotiated where necessary to meet Group requirements. Surplus funds are placed on call deposits.

At the end of the year the the Group had an ongoing overdraft facility, at variable interest rates of £2,000,000 (2006:£500,000).

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities
Carrying Contractual 6 months

2007 amount cash flows or less 1 year 2–5 years
Financial liabiltiies £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Trade creditors 4,402 (4,402) (4,402) — —
Other taxes and social security 410 (410) (410) — —
Obligations under finance leases 42 (42) — (11) (31)

4,854 (4,854) (4,812) (11) (31)
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21 Financial instruments (continued)
Carrying Contractual 6 months

2006 amount cash flows or less 1 year 2–5 years
Financial liabiltiies £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Trade creditors 2,609 (2,609) (2,609) — —
Other taxes and social security 173 (173) (173) — —
Redeemable loan notes 39 (40) (40) — —
Obligations under finance leases 49 (49) (10) (39)

2,870 (2,871) (2,822) (10) (39)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an
obligation. Customers and clients are a combination of long established major companies and prefinanced property funds. For
contracting customers where necessary, credit checks and or verification of external funding provision are conducted prior to entering
into binding commitments.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure and relates to financial assets carried at amortised
costs as they have short term maturity.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December amounted to the following:
Carrying amount

2007 2006
£’000 £’000

Available-for-sale financial asset 566 —
Trade receivables 8,074 3,553
Other receivables 321 —
Inventories 43 33
Cash and cash equivalents 1,504 647

10,508 4,233

The ageing of trade receivables and VAT recoverable at the reporting date was
2007 2006
£’000 £’000

Not past due 7,086 2,716
Past due 0–30 694 789
Past due 31–120 615 48

8,395 3,553

The maximum exposure to credit risks for trade receivables at the reporting date by business segments
2007 2006
£’000 £’000

Construction and refurbishment 3,768 1,780
Investment fund management 2,301 1,396
Property management 2,005 377

8,074 3,553

The maximum exposure to credit risks for trade receivables at the reporting date by geographical segments
2007 2006
£’000 £’000

United Kingdom 3,773 1,793
Continental Europe 4,143 1,659
Far East 158 101

8,074 3,553

Interest risk
The Group’s only financial asset exposed to interest rate risk was cash and cash equivalents of £1,504,000 (2006: £647,000).

Funds not required immediately for the Group’s operations are invested in short term deposit accounts at market rates. Interest risk
relating to floating rates on cash balances is considered to be insignificant.

Any movement in interest rates would not be considered to have any significant impact on net assets at the balance sheet date.
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21 Financial instruments (continued)
Foreign Currency risks
The Group operates internationally and is subject to transactional foreign currency exposures primarily with respect to the Euro and
US Dollar when any of the company’s subsidiaries receives income or pays for services in currencies other than sterling.

The Group does not actively manage the exposures but regularly monitors the Group’s currency position and exchange rate
movements and makes decisions as appropriate. 

At the balance sheet date the Group had the following exposure
GBP EUR USD HKD Total

2007 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Non-current assets 1,602 536 — 4 2,142
Current assets 12,863 6,138 462 18 19,481
Current liabilities (12,181) (4,272) (66) (5) (16,524)
Non-current liabilities (31) — — — (31)
Net assets 2,253 2,402 396 17 5,068

At the balance sheet date the Group had the following net exposure:
Great British Pound (GBP) 44.5%
Euro (EUR) 47.4%
United States Dollar (USD) 7.8%
Hong Kong Dollar (HKD) 0.3%

100.0%

GBP EUR USD Total
2006 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Non-current assets 1,327 69 — 1,396
Current assets 5,908 2,102 101 8,111
Current liabilities (6,164) (1,059) (40) (7,263)
Non-current liabilities (39) — — (39)
Net assets 1,032 1,112 61 2,205

At the balance sheet date the Group had the following net exposure:
GBP 46.8%
EURO 50.4%
USD 2.8%

100.0%

A 5% weakening of Sterling against the following currencies at 31 December would have increased equity and profit and loss by the 
amounts shown below:

EUR USD Total
2007 £’000 £’000 £’000
Non-current assets 159 — 159
Current assets 293 23 316
Current liabilities (223) (3) (226)
Net assets 229 20 249

EUR USD Total
2006 £’000 £’000 £’000
Non-current assets 3 — 3
Current assets 117 5 122
Current liabilities (57) (2) (59)
Net assets 63 3 66

A 5% strengthening of Sterling against the above currencies would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to
the amounts shown above on the basis that all other variables remain constant.
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22 Guarantees and other financial commitments
Group
The Group has given performance bonds with a value of £2,192,850 (2006: £650,000).

Company
The Company has guaranteed the overdrafts of its subsidiaries. As at the balance sheet date the total commitment was £1,238,277
(2006: £1,454,648).

The Group and Company had no capital commitments (2006: £Nil).

23 Reporting under International Financial Reporting Standards
The Group previously reported its financial statements under UK GAAP for the year ended 31 December 2006. The analysis below
shows a reconciliation of the Group’s results and equity reported under UK GAAP to that reported under IFRS for the 12 months to
31 December 2006. The transition does not change any of the cash flows.

Transition to IFRS
Reconciliation of net income and equity for the year ended 31 December 2006

Income Statement
Transitional

UK GAAP adjustment IFRS
£’000 £’000 £’000

Amortisation of goodwill* 56 (56) — 
Loss for the year after taxation (364) 56 (308)

Balance Sheet items
Transitional

UK GAAP adjustment IFRS
£’000 £’000 £’000

Intangible assets — goodwill 888 56 944
Retained earnings (9,357) 56 (9,301)
Total equity 2,149 56 2,205

* IFRS 3 Business combination does not permit the amortisation of goodwill. Instead goodwill is carried at cost and is subject to
regular impairment reviews. The impact in the year to 31 December 2006 is the reversal of the amortisation charge of £56,000.
There are no associated tax impacts.

There was no equity adjustment at 31 December 2005.

24 Subsequent events
1. On 12 January 2008 the company granted 200,000 share options at an exercise price of 46p per share, exercisable between 

12 January 2011 and 12 January 2018.

2. On 1 April 2008 the company issued 180,068 ordinary shares at par in respect of an exercise of share options.

3. On 22 January 2008, Speymill 2007 Limited, the former UK holding company, applied to the high court to eliminate the deficit on its
profit and loss account by cancellation against its share premium and capital redemption accounts. The application was approved
and registered on 7 February 2008.

4. On 7 February 2008 Speymill Macau Property Company plc entered into an agreement to dispose of its interest in one of its
investment properties. This will result in the payment of performance and disposal fees totalling c.£1.6m to Speymill Property Group
Limited during the second quarter of 2008.

5. A dividend of 0.5 pence per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2007 is to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting,
payable on 20 June 2008 to shareholders on the register as at 23 May 2008.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Speymill Group plc will be held at The Claremont
Hotel, 18/19 Loch Promenade, Douglas, Isle of Man on 19 May 2008 at 1.00 p.m. for the following purposes:

Ordinary Business
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following Resolutions 1 to 11 which will be proposed as ordinary resolutions namely:

1. To receive and adopt the report of the Directors and accounts of the company for the year ended 31 December 2007, together with
the report of the auditors thereon.

2. To approve the Report of the Remuneration Committee for the year ended 31 December 2007.

3. To appoint KPMG Audit LLC to hold office as auditors of the company until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting at
which accounts of the company are presented and authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

4. To re-elect as Director Jim Mellon, who retires in accordance with the company’s Articles of Association and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election.

5. To re-elect as Director Bob MacDonald, who retires in accordance with the company’s Articles of Association and, being eligible,
offers himself for re-election.

6. To re-elect as Director Andrew Latham, who retires in accordance with the company’s Articles of Association and, being eligible,
offers himself for re-election.

7. To re-elect as Director Keith Lees, who retires in accordance with the company’s Articles of Association and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election.

8. To re-elect as Director Sir James Mellon, who retires in accordance with the company’s Articles of Association and, being eligible,
offers himself for re-election.

9. To re-elect as Director Denham Eke, who retires in accordance with the company’s Articles of Association and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election.

10. To re-elect as Director Ilyas Khan, who retires in accordance with the company’s Articles of Association and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election.

11. To approve the payment of the final dividend of 0.5 pence per share recommended by the directors in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2007. Subject to approval, the record date for the dividend will be 23 May 2008 and the dividend will be paid
on 20 June 2008.

Special Business
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following Resolutions 12 to 15 which will be proposed as special resolutions namely:

12. That, pursuant to Article 5.2(f) of the company’s Articles of Association, the Directors be and are hereby empowered to allot equity
securities for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by Article 5.1 of the company’s Articles of Association in the manner described
in sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) below and that Article 5.2(a) of the company’s Articles of Association shall not apply to 
such allotment:

(a) the allotment of equity securities in connection with or pursuant to an offer by way of rights to the holders of ordinary shares in
the capital of the company and other persons entitled to participate therein for cash in proportion (as nearly as may be) to the
holdings of ordinary shares of such holders (or, as appropriate, to the numbers of ordinary shares which other persons are for
these purposes deemed to hold), subject only to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or
expedient to deal with legal or practical problems in respect of overseas holders, fractional entitlements or otherwise; and

(b) the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (a) above) of equity securities up to an aggregate nominal amount
equal to £173,865.

which power shall (unless previously revoked, varied or renewed) expire on the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held
in 2009 or 15 months after the passing of this Resolution (whichever is the earlier).
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13. That the Company be and is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised to make market purchases (as defined in Section 13 of
the Companies Act 1992) of ordinary shares of 1p each in the issued capital of the Company (“Ordinary shares”) subject to the
following conditions:

(a) the maximum number of ordinary shares of 1p each which may be purchased is 5,796,884 (representing approximately 
10 per cent of the issued Ordinary share capital);

(b) the maximum price at which an Ordinary share may be purchased is an amount equal to 105% of the average of the middle
market quotations for such shares as derived from The Daily Official List of The London Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of purchase and the minimum price is 1p per Ordinary share, in both cases exclusive of
expenses; and

(c) the authority conferred by this Resolution shall expire on the earlier of the date falling 15 months after the passing of this
resolution or the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2009 provided that any contract
for the purchase of ordinary shares permitted by this Resolution which has been concluded before the expiry of this authority
may be executed wholly or partly after the authority expires.

14. That the company be and is hereby authorised to enter into a contract with the two subscribers to the Memorandum of Association of
the Company to purchase (as an off-market purchase as defined in Section 11 of the Companies Act 1992) the one subscriber share
of 1p each held by each of them respectively, the consideration for which shall be the nominal value of each such share, such
authority to expire on 31 August 2008.

15. To approve the proposed change of name of the company from Speymill Group plc to Speymill plc, as recommended by the directors.

By order of the Board 
N Holmes
Secretary

Dated: 18 April 2008

Registered Office: 
1st Floor
Regent House
16–18 Ridgeway Street
Douglas
Isle of Man
IM1 1EN

Notes:
1. A member of the company entitled to attend and vote at the above-mentioned Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or

more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member. Completion and return of the attached
form of proxy will not preclude shareholders from attending and voting at the meeting.

2. A pre-paid form of proxy is enclosed. To be valid, the form of proxy (together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any)
under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof) must be received at the office of the Company’s registrars, Capita
Registrars (Isle of Man) Limited, 3rd Floor, Exchange House, 54–62 Athol Street, Isle of Man, IM1 1JD not less than 48 hours before
the time fixed for the meeting or any adjourned meeting at which the proxy is to vote.

3. The company, pursuant to Regulation 22 of the Uncertified Securities Regulations 2005, specifies that only those shareholders
registered in the register of members of the company as at 1.00 p.m. on 17 May 2008 shall be entitled to attend or vote at the
Annual General Meeting in respect of the number of Ordinary Shares registered in their name at that time. Changes to the entries on
the register of members after that time will be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at the Annual
General Meeting.

4. To appoint a proxy or to give or amend an instruction to a previously appointed proxy via the CREST system, the CREST message
must be received by the issuer’s agent RA10 by 1.00 p.m. on 17 May 2008. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be
the time (as determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the issuer’s agent is
able to retrieve the message. After this time any change of instructions to a proxy appointed through CREST should be communicated
to the proxy by other means. CREST Personal Members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST Members who have
appointed voting service provider(s) should contact their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) for assistance with appointing
proxies via CREST. For further information on CREST procedures, limitations and system timings please refer to the CREST Manual.
We may treat as invalid a proxy appointment sent by CREST in the circumstances set out in Regulation 18(4) (a) of the
Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2005. In any case your proxy form must be received by the company’s registrars no later than 
1.00 p.m. on 17 May 2008.
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Form of Proxy
Speymill Group plc (“the company”)

I/We . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

being a member of the above-named company, hereby appoint . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . or, failing him,
the Chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the company to be held
on 19 May 2008 at 1.00 p.m, at The Claremont Hotel, 18/19 Loch Promenade, Douglas, Isle of Man and at any adjournment thereof.

Ordinary Business Vote
For Against withheld

1. To receive and adopt the report of the Directors and accounts of the company
for the year ended 31 December 2007

2 To approve the Report of the Remuneration Committee
3. To appoint KPMG Audit LLC and authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration
4. To re-elect as Director Jim Mellon
5. To re-elect as Director Bob MacDonald
6. To re-elect as Director Andrew Latham
7. To re-elect as Director Keith Lees
8. To re-elect as Director Sir James Mellon
9. To re-elect as Director Denham Eke

10. To re-elect as Director Ilyas Khan
11. To approve the payment of a final dividend of 0.5 pence per share in respect of the

financial year ended 31 December 2007
Special Business
12. To disapply the pre-emption rights set out in the company’s articles of association
13. To authorise the Directors to make market purchases of the Company’s Ordinary Shares
14. To authorise the purchase of the two original subscriber shares
15. To approve changing the name of the company from Speymill Group Plc to Speymill Plc

This form is to be used in respect of the Resolutions set out in the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting. Unless otherwise
instructed, the proxy may vote as he thinks fit in respect of the resolutions specified and also on any other business (including
amendments to resolutions) which may properly come before the meeting.

Signed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Date . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Notes:
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is also entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and, on a poll, vote instead of him.

The proxy need not be a member of the company. A proxy of a member’s own choice may be appointed by inserting the proxy’s name
on this Proxy Form in the space provided. If you do not use another name on the form, the Chairman of the meeting will act as your
proxy. The Proxy Form should be executed by either the shareholder or his/her attorney duly authorised in writing, or if the
shareholder is a corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised. The completion and return
of this Proxy Form will not preclude an eligible shareholder from attending and voting in person at the meeting should he/she wish 
to do so.

2. If the Proxy Form is returned without an indication as to how the proxy must vote on a particular matter, the proxy will exercise his
discretion as to whether, and if so how, he votes.

3. To be effective, the Proxy Form and any authority under which it is executed (or a notarially certified copy of such authority) must be
deposited at the office of the registrar, so as to be received not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

4. Pursuant to Regulation 22 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2005, to be entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting (and for the purposes of the determination by the company of the number of votes they may cast), members must be entered
on the company’s register of members by 1.00 p.m. on 17 May 2008.

5. In the case of joint holders of a share, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, should be accepted to
the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holder(s), and, for this purpose, seniority shall be determined by the order in which the
names of the holders stand in the Register of Members in respect of the share.

6. Your proxy can demand (or join in demanding) a poll on any or all of the resolutions proposed.

7. Shares held in uncertified form (i.e. in CREST) may be voted through the CREST Proxy Voting Service in accordance with the
procedures set out in the CREST manual. Shareholders wishing to vote online should visit www.capitaregistrars.com/shareholders and
follow the instructions.
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54–62 Athol Street
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IM86  2BA
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Head Office

1st Floor
Regent House
16–18 Ridgeway Street
Douglas
Isle of Man
IM1 1EN

Tel: 01624 640860
Fax: 01624 618280
enquiries@speymill.com
www.speymill.com
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